(To Prospectus Dated December 4, 2024)

\$1,000,000,000



Common Stock

On December 4, 2024, we entered into a Controlled Equity Offering SM Sales Agreement (the "sales agreement") with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co., Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc., The Benchmark Company, LLC, BTIG, LLC, Canaccord Genuity LLC, Craig-Hallum Capital Group LLC, Maxim Group LLC, Needham & Company, LLC and Roth Capital Partners, LLC (each, a "U.S. sales agent," and collectively, the "U.S. sales agents") and Cantor Fitzgerald Canada Corporation, Stifel Nicolaus Canada Inc., Canaccord Genuity Corp., and certain of their Canadian affiliates (each, a "Canadian sales agent," and collectively, the "Canadian sales agents," and together with the U.S. sales agents, the "sales agents"), relating to shares of our common stock, par value \$0.01 per share (the "common stock"), offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. In accordance with the terms of the sales agreement, under this prospectus supplement we may offer and sell shares of our common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to \$1,000,000,000 from time to time through the sales agents, acting as our agents, or directly to the sales agents, acting as principals. We had previously registered shares of our common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to \$500,000,000, offered by means of a 424(b)(5) prospectus supplement, dated December 4, 2024 (the "prior prospectus supplement"). As of the date of this prospectus supplement, we have sold shares of our common stock representing an aggregate amount of \$299,410,286.68 pursuant to the prior prospectus supplement under the sales agreement. The offering pursuant to the prior prospectus supplement has terminated.

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market ("Nasdaq") and the Toronto Stock Exchange (the "TSX") under the symbol "HUT." On August 21, 2025, the closing price of our common stock on Nasdaq and the TSX was \$21.37 and C\$29.71 per share, respectively.

Additional sales of common stock under the sales agreement may be made in sales deemed to be "at the market offerings" as defined in Rule 415(a)(4) promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), by means of ordinary brokers' transactions, to or through a market maker, on or through Nasdaq or any other market venue where the securities may be traded, in the over-the-counter market, in privately negotiated transactions (including block transactions), or through a combination of any such methods of sale. The sales agents may also sell our common stock by any other method permitted by law. The U.S. sales agents will only sell shares on marketplaces in the United States. The sales agents are not required to sell any specific number or dollar amount of our common stock, but the sales agents will use their commercially reasonable efforts consistent with their normal trading and sales practices in accordance with the sales agreement and on mutually agreed terms between each sales agent and us. Under the terms of the sales agreement, we may in the future, but are not obligated to, make sales of common stock in Canada through the Canadian sales agents, subject certain terms and conditions, including the filing of a prospectus in each of the provinces and territories of Canada qualifying our common stock in "at-the-market" offerings under Canadian securities laws

Each sales agent will receive from us a commission equal to up to 3.0% of the gross proceeds from the sales of shares of our common stock sold to or through it under the sales agreement. In connection with the sale of the shares of our common stock on our behalf, each sales agent may be deemed to be an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act, and the compensation of each sales agent may be deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts. We have also agreed to provide indemnification and contribution to the sales agents with respect to certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

Under the terms of the sales agreement, we may also sell shares of our common stock to the sales agents, acting as principals, at a price per share to be agreed upon at the time of sale. If we sell shares to the sales agents as principals, we will enter into a separate terms agreement with them.

Investing in our common stock involves risks. See "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-3 of this prospectus supplement and in the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus for a description of risks you should consider when evaluating such investment.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") nor any state, provincial or territorial securities commission, nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus supplement and the prospectus to which it relates are truthful and complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Cantor Keefe, Bruyette & Woods A Stifel Company The Maxim Group Needham & Roth Capital Canaccord RTIG Benchmark Craig-Hallum **Partners** Genuity LLC Company Company

The date of this prospectus supplement is August 22, 2025.

Prospectus Supplement

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT	<u>S-ii</u>
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	<u>S-iii</u>
SUMMARY	<u>S-1</u>
RISK FACTORS	<u>S-3</u>
USE OF PROCEEDS	<u>S-5</u>
DILUTION	<u>S-6</u>
U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	<u>S-8</u>
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	<u>S-11</u>
LEGAL MATTERS	<u>S-13</u>
EXPERTS	<u>S-13</u>
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	S-ii S-iii S-1 S-3 S-5 S-6 S-8 S-11 S-13 S-13 S-14
INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE	<u>S-15</u>
Prospectus	
TABLE OF CONTENTS	
111111111111111111111111111111111111111	
	<u>Page</u>
	<u> </u>
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	1
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	$\overline{2}$
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	3
THE COMPANY	$\frac{1}{4}$
RISK FACTORS	5
USE OF PROCEEDS	<u>6</u>
DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES	7
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	8
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES	11
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES	12
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS	14
DESCRIPTION OF SUBSCRIPTION RIGHTS	<u>15</u>
DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND PURCHASE UNITS	16
SELLING SECURITYHOLDERS	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 11 12 14 15 16 17 18
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	18
LEGAL MATTERS	19
EXPERTS	<u>19</u>

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

This document is in two parts. The first part, this prospectus supplement, describes the specific terms of this offering and the securities offered hereby, and also adds to and updates information contained in the accompanying base prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and the base prospectus. The second part, the base prospectus, gives more general information and disclosure. When we refer only to the prospectus, we are referring to both parts combined, and when we refer to the accompanying prospectus, we are referring to the base prospectus.

If there is any inconsistency between information in or incorporated by reference into the base prospectus and information in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, you should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement. This prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated into each by reference include important information about us, the common stock being offered and other information you should know before investing. You should read this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus together with the additional information described under the heading, "Where You Can Find More Information" before investing in our common stock.

When used in this prospectus, the terms "Hut 8," the "Company," "we," "our" and "us" refer to Hut 8 Corp. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires. References to "\$" refer to United States dollars and references to "C\$" refer to Canadian dollars.

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. We have not, and the sales agents have not, authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are not, and the sales agents are not, making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale thereof is not permitted. You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated into each by reference is accurate only as of their respective dates. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, including the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein, contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act, Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions, that, if proven incorrect or do not materialize, could cause our results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are generally identified by the words "intend," "plan," "may," "should," "will," "project," "estimate," "anticipate," "believe," "expect," "continue," "potential," "opportunity," and similar expressions. All statements other than statements of historical fact are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements. Such statements are based on management's current expectations and are subject to a number of factors and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements. There can be no assurance that actual results or business conditions will not differ materially from those projected or suggested in such forward-looking statements as a result of various factors.

These forward-looking statements may include, for example, statements about:

- · expectations relating to our future financial performance;
- the ability to expand our business or enter into new lines of business and provide new offerings, services, and features and make enhancements to our business;
- · the ability to compete with existing and new competitors in existing and new markets and offerings;
- · the ability to acquire new businesses or pursue strategic transactions;
- the outcome of any material litigation to which the Company is a party;
- the ability of our cash flows generated from operating activities and our Bitcoin held in reserve to meet our anticipated cash requirements in the short-term;
- our ability to access the capital markets for any long-term funding not provided by operating cash flows and cash on hand;
- · the expectations regarding the effects of existing and developing laws and regulations;
- · global and domestic economic conditions and their impact on demand for our markets and offerings;
- · our anticipated offering of shares of our common stock in this offering on the terms and conditions described herein; and
- the aggregate amount of total net proceeds, if any, that we may receive from this offering and our expectations with respect to the use of such net proceeds and estimated expenses of this offering.

You should carefully consider these risks when you make a decision concerning an investment in our common stock. The following factors or events, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements:

- · our ability to establish and maintain strategic collaborations or other arrangements, and the terms of and timing such arrangements;
- changes in our financial or operating performance or more generally due to broader stock market movements and the performance of peer group companies;
- · competitive pressures in the markets in which we operate;

- · changes in laws or regulations;
- · physical risks related to climate change;
- changes in geopolitical, social or general economic conditions and other events and circumstances in the United States, Canada, or elsewhere; and
- the other important factors discussed in this prospectus supplement and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (the "Annual Report"), any subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or Current Reports on Form 8-K, as updated by our subsequent filings under the Exchange Act.

We operate in a competitive and rapidly changing environment. The risks and uncertainties described and referred to above are not exhaustive and further information concerning us and our business, including factors that make an investment in our securities speculative or risky and any one of which could potentially materially affect our business, financial condition, or operating results, may emerge from time to time. You should read this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein with the understanding that our actual future results, performance, and achievements may be materially different from what we expect. We qualify all of our forward-looking statements with these cautionary statements and urge you not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein speak only as of the date of such document. Except as required by law, we do not assume any obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements for any reason, even if new information becomes available in the future.

SUMMARY

The following summary highlights information contained elsewhere or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. It may not contain all of the information that is important to you. Before making a decision to invest in our common stock, you should carefully read this entire prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, including the risks set forth under the caption "Risk Factors" in this prospectus supplement and in the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, and the information set forth under the caption "Where You Can Find More Information" on page S-14.

Our Company

General

We are an energy infrastructure platform that integrates power, digital infrastructure, and compute at scale to fuel next-generation, energy-intensive use cases such as Bitcoin mining and high-performance computing. We take a power-first, innovation-driven approach to developing, commercializing, and operating the critical infrastructure that underpins the breakthrough technologies of today and tomorrow.

Our Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 1101 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1500, Miami, FL 33131 and our telephone number is (305) 224-6427. We were incorporated in the State of Delaware on January 27, 2023 for the purposes of effecting the business combination pursuant to which, among other things, Hut 8 Mining Corp. and Hut 8 Holdings Inc., each a corporation existing under the laws of British Columbia, amalgamated to continue as one British Columbia corporation ("Hut Amalco"), and both Hut Amalco and U.S. Data Mining Group, Inc., a Nevada corporation doing business as "US BITCOIN," became our wholly-owned subsidiaries. We maintain a website at www.hut8.com. The information found on, or otherwise accessible through, our website is not incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus, and you should not consider it a part of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus.

The Offering

Issuer Hut 8 Corp.

Common stock offered by us Shares having an aggregate offering price of up to \$1,000,000,000.

Use of Proceeds

We intend to use the net proceeds, if any, from this offering for growth initiatives related to energy and digital infrastructure development. Net proceeds may also be allocated to other capital expenditures and investments, working capital, the repurchase of outstanding securities, the repayment of indebtedness, and other general corporate purposes. See "Use of Proceeds."

Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. Prospective investors should carefully consider the matters discussed under the caption entitled "Risk Factors" on page S-3 of this prospectus supplement and in the documents incorporated by reference herein, our future periodic reports as well as the other information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, before making a decision to invest in our common

stock.

HUT Nasdaq and TSX trading symbol

RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks described below in addition to those described in the section entitled "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report and any subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q (which descriptions are incorporated by reference herein), as well as the other information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement as updated by our subsequent filings under the Exchange Act before making a decision to invest in our common stock. The risks and uncertainties described herein and in our SEC filings are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties that we are unaware of, or that we currently believe are not material, may also become important factors that adversely affect our business. If any such risks and uncertainties actually occur, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be materially and adversely affected, the market price of our securities could decline and you could lose all or part of your investment. See "Where You Can Find More Information," "Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference" and "Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."

Risks Relating to this Offering

Our management will have broad discretion in the use of the net proceeds from this offering and may allocate the net proceeds from this offering in ways that you and other stockholders may not approve.

Our management will have broad discretion in the use of the net proceeds, including for any of the purposes described in the section entitled "Use of Proceeds," and you will not have the opportunity as part of your investment decision to assess whether the net proceeds are being used appropriately. Because of the number and variability of factors that will determine our use of the net proceeds from this offering, their ultimate use may vary substantially from their currently intended use. The failure of our management to use these funds effectively could harm our business. Pending their use, we may invest the net proceeds from this offering in money market funds or other short-term, investment-grade, interest-bearing investments. These investments may not yield a favorable return to our stockholders.

You may experience immediate and substantial dilution in this offering and future dilution as a result of future offerings and other issuances of equity or equity-linked securities.

The shares of our common stock sold in this offering, if any, will be sold from time to time at various prices. The price per share of our common stock being offered may be substantially higher than the net tangible book value per share of our outstanding common stock at the time you are purchasing shares in this offering. Therefore, if you purchase shares of our common stock in this offering, you may pay a price per share that exceeds our as-adjusted net tangible book value per share of common stock. See "Dilution."

In order to raise additional capital, we may in the future offer additional shares of our common stock or other securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of our common stock at prices that may not be the same as the price per share in this offering. We may sell shares or other securities in any other offering at a price per share that is less than the price per share paid by investors in this offering, and investors purchasing shares or other securities in the future could have rights superior to existing stockholders. The price per share at which we sell additional shares of our common stock, or securities convertible into or exchangeable into shares of common stock, in future transactions may be higher or lower than the price per share paid by investors in this offering.

In addition, future issuances of our common stock or common stock-related securities, including upon possible conversion of the Coatue Convertible Note (as defined below), which number of shares of our common stock is uncertain and subject to adjustment, together with outstanding options and warrants and the vesting and/or settlement of outstanding stock units, may result in further dilution.

The common stock offered hereby will be sold in "at-the-market" offerings, and investors who buy shares at different times may pay different prices.

Investors who purchase shares of our common stock in this offering at different times may pay different prices, and so may experience different outcomes in their investment results. We will have discretion to vary the timing, prices, and numbers of shares of common stock sold in this offering, if any, and there is no minimum or maximum per-share sales price. Investors may experience a decline in the value of their shares of common stock as a result of share sales made at prices lower than the prices they paid.

The actual number of shares of common stock we will issue under the sales agreement and the net proceeds from this offering, at any one time or in total, is uncertain.

Subject to certain limitations in the sales agreement and compliance with applicable law, we have the discretion to deliver a sales notice to the sales agents at any time throughout the term of the sales agreement. The number of shares of common stock that are sold by the sales agents after delivering a sales notice, and the net proceeds received by us from this offering, will fluctuate based on a number of factors, including the market price of the shares of common stock during the sales period, demand for our shares of common stock during the sales period and, with respect to sales by the sales agent, volume and price limits we set with the sales agents. Because the price per share of each share of common stock sold will fluctuate based on the market price of our common stock during the sales period, it is not possible at this stage to predict the number of shares of common stock that will be ultimately issued in this offering, if any.

Future offerings of debt securities, which would rank senior to our common stock upon our liquidation, and future offerings of equity or equity-linked securities, which could dilute our existing stockholders and may be senior to our common stock for the purposes of dividend and liquidating distributions, may materially adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

We may raise additional capital through the issuance of debt, equity or equity-linked securities from time to time. Upon liquidation, holders of our debt securities and preferred stock and lenders with respect to other borrowings will be entitled to our available assets prior to the holders of our common stock. Additional equity or equity-linked securities offerings may dilute the holdings of our existing stockholders or reduce the market price of our common stock, or both. Preferred stock could have a preference on liquidating distributions or a preference on dividend payments that could limit our ability to pay dividends to the holders of our common stock. Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock or equity-linked securities, or the perception that these sales could occur, could have a material adverse effect on the price of our common stock. Because our decision to issue debt, equity or equity-linked securities in any future offering will depend on market conditions and other factors beyond our control, we cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing or nature of our future offerings. Thus, holders of our common stock bear the risk of our future offerings reducing the market price of our common stock and diluting the value of their stock holdings in us.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We may issue and sell shares of our common stock in this offering having an aggregate offering proceeds of up to \$1,000,000,000 from time to time. The timing of any sales and the number of shares of our common stock sold, if any, will depend on a variety of factors to be determined by us. Because there is no assurance that we will offer and sell any shares of our common stock in this offering and we are unable to predict the price at which any shares may be sold, the actual total public offering amount, commissions and net proceeds to us, if any, are not determinable at this time. There is no minimum amount of funds that must be raised in this offering.

We intend to use the net proceeds, if any, from this offering for growth initiatives related to energy and digital infrastructure development. Net proceeds may also be allocated to other capital expenditures and investments, working capital, the repurchase of outstanding securities, the repayment of indebtedness, and other general corporate purposes. Our expected use of net proceeds from this offering represents our current intentions based upon our present plans and business condition. The amounts and timing of our actual use of net proceeds will depend on numerous factors. We will retain broad discretion of the use of the net proceeds from any sale of common stock by us. Pending utilization, we may temporarily invest the net proceeds from this offering, including in money market funds or other short-term, investment-grade, interest-bearing investments.

DILUTION

If you invest in our common stock in this offering, your ownership interest will be diluted to the extent of the difference between the public offering price per share of our common stock in this offering and the as-adjusted net tangible book value per share of our common stock immediately after this offering.

As of June 30, 2025, we had net tangible book value of approximately \$176.58 million, or \$1.69 per share of our common stock, based upon 104,418,127 shares of our common stock outstanding as of that date. Historical net tangible book value per share is equal to our total tangible assets, less total liabilities, divided by the number of outstanding shares of our common stock. Net tangible book value does not include the value of intangible assets, such as the value of any Bitcoin held by us. Dilution in net tangible book value per share represents the difference between the amount per share paid by purchasers of shares of our common stock in this offering and the net tangible book value per share of our common stock immediately after this offering.

After giving effect to the sale of 46,794,571 shares of common stock in this offering at an assumed public offering price of \$21.37 per share, the last reported sale price on Nasdaq on August 21, 2025, and after deducting commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us, our as-adjusted net tangible book value as of June 30, 2025 would have been approximately \$1,146.24 million, or approximately \$7.58 per share of common stock. This represents an immediate increase in as-adjusted net tangible book value of \$5.89 per share to our existing stockholders and an immediate dilution of \$13.79 per share to investors participating in this offering at the assumed public offering price.

Dilution per share to new investors is determined by subtracting net tangible book value per share after this offering from the public offering price per share paid by new investors. The following table illustrates this per share dilution to new investors:

Assumed public offering price per share	\$	21.37
Net tangible book value per share as of June 30, 2025	\$ 1.69	
Increase in net tangible book value per share attributable to this offering	\$ 5.89	
As-adjusted net tangible book value per share after giving effect to this offering	\$	7.58
Dilution in net tangible book value per share to investors in this offering	\$	13.79

The table above assumes for illustrative purposes that an aggregate of \$1,000,000,000 in shares of our common stock are sold at a price of \$21.37 per share, the last reported sale price of our common stock on Nasdaq on August 21, 2025. The shares sold in this offering, if any, will be sold from time to time at various prices. An increase of \$1.00 per share in the price at which the shares of our common stock are sold from the assumed offering price of \$21.37 per share shown in the table above, assuming all of our common stock in the aggregate amount of \$1,000,000,000 is sold at that price, would increase our as-adjusted net tangible book value per share after the offering to \$7.69 per share and would increase the dilution in net tangible book value per share to investors participating in this offering to \$14.68 per share. A decrease of \$1.00 per share in the price at which the shares of our common stock are sold from the assumed offering price of \$21.37 per share shown in the table above, assuming all of our common stock in the aggregate amount of \$1,000,000,000 is sold at that price, would decrease our as-adjusted net tangible book value per share after the offering to \$7.47 per share and would decrease the dilution in net tangible book value per share to investors participating in this offering to \$12.90 per share.

The information discussed above is illustrative only and will adjust based on the actual public offering prices and other terms of this offering determined at the time of sale.

The table and discussion above are based on 104,418,127 shares of our common stock outstanding as of June 30, 2025, and exclude:

- all shares of our common stock issuable upon the conversion of the convertible note in the principal amount of \$150.0 million issued to Coatue Tactical Solutions Lending Holdings AIV 3 LP (the "Coatue Convertible Note");
- 3,538,473 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options outstanding as of June 30, 2025, with a weighted average exercise price of \$4.64 per share;
- 1,102,326 shares of our common stock issuable from time to time upon the settlement of restricted stock units outstanding as of June 30, 2025;
- · 73,954 shares of our common stock issuable from time to time upon the redemption of deferred stock units outstanding as of June 30, 2025;
- · 6,255,213 shares of our common stock issuable from time to time upon the settlement of performance stock units outstanding as of June 30, 2025;
- · 8,769,763 shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance pursuant to our Amended and Restated Hut 8 Corp. 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan as of June 30, 2025; and
- 1,895 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of common stock purchase warrants outstanding as of June 30, 2025, with a weighted average exercise price of \$53.45 per share

Except as otherwise indicated, all information in this prospectus supplement assumes no conversion of the Coatue Convertible Note, no exercise or forfeiture of options, no grant of equity awards and no vesting and settlement of the outstanding restricted stock units, deferred stock units and performance stock units described above.

To the extent that there is conversion of the Coatue Convertible Note, any options or warrants are exercised, any restricted stock units, deferred stock units or performance stock units vest and are settled, new equity awards are issued under our equity incentive plans, or we otherwise issue additional shares of our common stock in the future (including shares issued in connection with strategic and other transactions), there will be further dilution to new investors.

We expect to continue to raise capital when and as needed and at the time and in the manner most advantageous to us. To the extent that additional capital is raised through the sale of equity, equity-linked, convertible debt securities or other securities that are exercisable for, or convertible into, shares of our common stock, the issuance of these securities could result in further dilution to our stockholders.

U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion is a summary of the U.S. federal income tax considerations generally applicable to the ownership and disposition of the shares of our common stock offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. This summary is based on the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder ("Treasury Regulations"), rulings, official pronouncements, and judicial decisions, all as in effect on the date hereof and all of which are subject to change and differing interpretations, possibly with retroactive effect. This discussion is limited to Non-U.S. Holders (as defined below) that purchase shares of our common stock offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and that hold the shares of common stock as "capital assets" as defined in the Code (generally, property held for investment). Moreover, this summary does not address all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to specific holders in light of their particular circumstances or to holders subject to special treatment under U.S. federal income tax laws (such as banks, insurance companies, regulated investment companies, real estate investment trusts, tax-exempt entities, dealers in securities, traders in securities that elect to use a mark to market method of tax accounting or persons subject to special tax accounting rules as a result of any item of gross income with respect to the common stock being taken into account in an "applicable financial statement," brokers, expatriates, entities or arrangements treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes, controlled foreign corporations, passive foreign investment companies, persons that hold their common stock as part of a straddle, hedge, conversion transaction or other integrated investment, and persons subject to an alternative minimum tax, all of whom may be subject to tax rules that differ significantly from those summarized below. In addition, this discussion does not address U.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR TAX ADVISORS AS TO THE TAX CONSEQUENCES TO THEM OF THE OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK, AS WELL AS THE APPLICABILITY OF U.S. FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL TAX LAWS, NON-U.S. TAX LAWS OR INCOME TAX TREATIES.

For purposes of this summary, a "Non-U.S. Holder" is a beneficial owner of common stock, other than an entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, that is not a U.S. Holder. A "U.S. Holder" is a beneficial owner of common stock that is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

- · a citizen or individual resident of the United States;
- · a corporation (or entity or arrangement treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof, or the District of Columbia:
- · an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source; or
- a trust (1) if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over its administration and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all of its substantial decisions, or (2) that has made a valid election to be treated as a U.S. person for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

If a partnership (or other entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds common stock, the U.S. federal income tax treatment of its partners will generally depend upon the status of the partners and the activities of such partnership. A partnership holding common stock and each of its partners should consult their tax advisors as to the tax consequences to them of holding and disposing of common stock in light of their particular circumstances.

Dividends and Distributions on Common Stock

We do not anticipate declaring or paying any dividends to holders of our common stock in the foreseeable future. However, if we were to pay dividends on our common stock, such dividends received by a Non-U.S. Holder with respect to common stock will generally be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax at a rate of 30% unless the Non-U.S. Holder provides proper certification of its eligibility for a reduced rate under an applicable income tax treaty (generally on IRS Form W-8BEN-E). Distributions will constitute dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent of the Company's current or accumulated earnings and profits as determined under the Code. Distributions that exceed such current or accumulated earnings and profits will reduce the Non-U.S. Holder's basis in its common stock (but not below zero). Any excess will be treated as gain realized on the sale or other taxable disposition of common stock and will be treated as described under "—Sale or Other Disposition of Common Stock" below.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Non-U.S. Holders should expect that the gross amount of any distributions with respect to common stock will generally be subject to U.S. withholding tax, unless the applicable withholding agent elects to withhold a lesser amount based on a reasonable estimate of the amount of the distribution that would be treated as a dividend.

Dividends that are effectively connected with a Non-U.S. Holder's conduct of a trade or business within the United States (and, if an applicable income tax treaty so requires, are attributable to a permanent establishment or fixed base maintained by the Non-U.S. Holder in the United States) will generally not be subject to U.S. withholding tax if the Non-U.S. Holder complies with applicable certification and disclosure requirements (generally by providing an IRS Form W-8ECI). Instead, such dividends will generally be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis at the regular graduated U.S. federal income tax rates generally applicable to U.S. persons and, in the case of corporate Non-U.S. Holders, may also be subject to an additional branch profits tax.

Sale or Other Disposition of Common Stock

A Non-U.S. Holder will generally not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on any gain realized upon the sale or other disposition of common stock, unless:

- the gain is effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Holder's conduct of a trade or business in the United States (and if an applicable income tax treaty so requires, is attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by the Non-U.S. Holder in the United States), in which case the gain will generally be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis at the regular graduated rates generally applicable to U.S. persons and, in the case of corporate Non-U.S. Holders, may also be subject to an additional branch profits tax;
- the Non-U.S. Holder is a nonresident alien individual present in the United States for 183 days or more during the taxable year of the disposition, and certain other requirements are met, in which case the gain will generally be subject to U.S. federal income tax and may be offset by U.S. source capital losses in certain circumstances; or
- we are or have been a "United States real property holding corporation" (a "USRPHC"), as defined in the Code, at any time during the shorter of the five-year period ending on the date of the sale, exchange, redemption, or other disposition of the common stock, and the period that the Non-U.S. Holder held the common stock, and certain other conditions are met, in which case the gain will generally be subject to tax as income effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business. We believe that we are not, and do not anticipate becoming, a USRPHC, although no assurances can be provided in this regard.

Non-U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of the ownership and disposition of the common stock and the effects of any applicable income tax treaties.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

Under the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act and the regulations and administrative guidance promulgated thereunder, withholding tax will generally be required on payments of dividends in respect of common stock held by or through certain foreign financial institutions (including investment funds), unless such institution (i) otherwise qualifies for an exemption, (ii) enters into, and complies with, an agreement with the IRS to report, on an annual basis, information with respect to interests in, and accounts maintained by, the institution that are owned by certain U.S. persons and to withhold on certain payments, or (iii) if required under an intergovernmental agreement between the United States and an applicable foreign country, reports such information to its local tax authority, which will exchange such information with the U.S. authorities. An intergovernmental agreement between the United States and an applicable foreign country, or other guidance, may modify these requirements. Similarly, in certain circumstances, dividends in respect of common stock, in each case, held by an investor that is a non-financial non-U.S. entity that does not qualify under certain exemptions will generally be subject to withholding tax, unless such entity either (i) certifies that such entity does not have any "substantial United States owners," which we will in turn provide to the IRS. Accordingly, the entity through the entity through a investor holds the common stock will affect the determination of whether withholding under the rules described in this paragraph is required. No additional amounts will be paid to holders in respect of any amounts withheld. Prospective investors should consult their tax advisors regarding the possible implications of these rules on an investment in the common stock.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We entered into a Controlled Equity Offering SM Sales Agreement, dated December 4, 2024, with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co., Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc., The Benchmark Company, LLC, BTIG, LLC, Canaccord Genuity LLC, Craig-Hallum Capital Group LLC, Maxim Group LLC, Needham & Company, LLC, Roth Capital Partners, LLC and certain of their Canadian affiliates, being Cantor Fitzgerald Canada Corporation, Stifel Nicolaus Canada Inc. and Canaccord Genuity Corp., pursuant to which we may issue and sell from time to time shares of our common stock under this prospectus supplement having an aggregate offering price of up to \$1,000,000,000 to or through the sales agents. The sales agents on our behalf or purchase shares of our common stock as principals. A copy of the sales agreement has been filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on December 4, 2024, and is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement. If we sell our common stock to any sales agent, acting as principal, we will enter into a separate agreement setting forth the terms of such transaction and, to the extent required by applicable law, we will describe this agreement in a separate prospectus supplement.

Additional sales of our common stock under the sales agreement may be made in sales deemed to be "at-the-market offerings" as defined in Rule 415(a)(4) promulgated under the Securities Act, including by means of ordinary brokers' transactions, to or through a market maker, on or through Nasdaq or any other market venue where the securities may be traded, in the over-the-counter market, in privately negotiated transactions (including block transactions), or through a combination of any such methods of sale. The sales agreement also provides that sales of our common stock may be made in Canada through the Canadian sales agents, subject to certain terms and conditions, including the filing with the Canadian securities commissions or other securities regulatory authorities in each of the provinces and territories of Canada of a Canadian prospectus in a form that permits "at-the-market" distributions for the purposes of Canadian securities laws. The common stock offered by this prospectus supplement has not, as of the date hereof, been qualified for sale in Canada and may not be offered or sold under the sales agreement on the TSX or otherwise in Canada until the conditions in the sales agreement, to the extent sales of common stock are made in Canada in Canadian dollars, the purchase price shall be converted to U.S. dollars using the daily average exchange rate posted by the Bank of Canada on the trading day immediately before the date shares of our common stock are sold in Canada. The sales agents may also sell our common stock by any other method permitted by law.

The shares of common stock may be sold at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to such prevailing market prices or at negotiated prices. We cannot predict the number of shares of our common stock that we may sell under the sales agreement on the Nasdaq, the TSX, if applicable, or any other trading market for our common stock in the United States or, if applicable, Canada, or if any additional common stock will be sold at all.

Upon receipt of written instructions from us and subject to the terms and conditions of the sales agreement, the applicable sales agent will use its commercially reasonable efforts consistent with its normal sales and trading practices to sell on our behalf the shares of our common stock. We will instruct a sales agent as to the maximum amount of common stock to be sold by such sales agent pursuant to such instructions. We may instruct such sales agent not to sell any common stock if the sales cannot be effected at or above the price designated by us in any such instruction. We or any sales agent, with respect to itself only, may suspend the offering of our common stock by notifying the other party.

A sales agent will provide to us written confirmation no later than the opening of the trading day on Nasdaq following the trading day on which shares of common stock are sold under the sales agreement. Each confirmation will include the number of shares of common stock sold on the preceding day, the net proceeds to us and the compensation payable by us to the applicable sales agent. We will report at least quarterly the number of shares of common stock sold through the sales agents under the sales agreement, the net proceeds to us (before expenses) and the compensation paid by us to the sales agents in connection with the sales of shares of common stock.

We will pay each sales agent a commission, in cash, for its service in acting as agent in the sale of our common stock at a commission rate of up to 3.0% of the gross sales price per share of common stock sold to or through such agent under the sales agreement. Because there is no minimum offering amount required as a condition to close this offering, the actual total public offering amount, commissions and proceeds to us, if any, are not determinable at this time. We have also agreed to reimburse the sales agents for certain specified expenses, including the fees and expenses of their legal counsel in an amount not to exceed \$25,000 in connection with the filing of this prospectus supplement and \$25,000 per calendar quarter thereafter and certain ongoing expenses. We estimate that the total expenses for the offering, excluding compensation and reimbursements payable to the sales agents under the terms of the sales agreement, will be approximately \$337,500.

Settlement of any sales of common stock will occur on the first trading day following the date on which such sales were made, or on some other date that is agreed upon by us and the sales agents in connection with a particular transaction, in return for payment of the net proceeds to us. There is no arrangement for funds to be received in an escrow, trust or similar arrangement. Sales of our common stock as contemplated in this prospectus supplement will be settled through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company or by such other means as we and the sales agents may agree.

The U.S. sales agents will only sell shares on marketplaces in the United States. If applicable, the Canadian sales agents will only sell shares on marketplaces in Canada. We or the sales agents may suspend the offering upon notice and subject to other conditions.

The offering of our common stock pursuant to the sales agreement will terminate upon the earlier of (i) the sale of all of the shares of our common stock subject to the sales agreement and (ii) the termination of the sales agreement by us or the sales agents as provided therein. As of the date of this prospectus supplement, we have sold shares of our common stock representing an aggregate amount of \$299,410,286.68 pursuant to the prior prospectus supplement under the sales agreement. The offering pursuant to the prior prospectus supplement has terminated. This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus may be made available in electronic format on a website maintained by the sales agents, and the sales agents may distribute this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus electronically.

The sales agents will use commercially reasonable efforts, consistent with their sales and trading practices, to sell on our behalf all of the shares of our common stock requested to be sold by us under the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the sales agreement. In connection with the sale of the shares of common stock on our behalf, each of the sales agents may be deemed to be an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act, and the compensation paid to each of the sales agents may be deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts. We have agreed to provide indemnification and contribution to the sales agents against certain liabilities, including civil liabilities under the Securities Act and, if applicable, Canadian securities laws.

We may engage in investment banking, brokerage and other dealings with the sales agents and their affiliates in the ordinary course of business and we expect that the sales agents and their affiliates will receive customary fees and commissions for their services in connection with these transactions.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters in connection with this offering will be passed upon for us by Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, New York, New York. Certain legal matters in connection with this offering will be passed upon for the sales agents by Morrison & Foerster LLP, Washington, District of Columbia. Certain legal matters with respect to Canadian law will be passed upon for us by Bennett Jones LLP, Toronto, Ontario.

EXPERTS

Our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, for the year ended December 31, 2024 and the six months ended December 31, 2023, appearing in the Annual Report have been audited by Raymond Chabot Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in their report thereon included therein, incorporated herein by reference, and have been incorporated in this prospectus and the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part in reliance upon such reports and upon the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements of U.S. Data Mining Group, Inc. as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 and for each of the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 incorporated in this prospectus by reference from our Annual Report have been audited by RSM US LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports thereon, incorporated herein by reference, and have been incorporated in this prospectus and the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part in reliance upon such reports and upon the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC under the Exchange Act. Our SEC filings are available to you, free of charge, on the SEC's website at https://www.sec.gov. You may also obtain additional information by visiting our website at https://www.hut8.com. The information found on, or otherwise accessible through, our website is not incorporated into, and does not form a part of this prospectus supplement or any other report or document we file with or furnish to the SEC.

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" information into this prospectus supplement which has been previously filed, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is deemed to be part of this prospectus supplement, except for any information superseded by information included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement. We have filed the documents listed below with the SEC (File No. 001-41864) under the Exchange Act and these documents are incorporated herein by reference:

- · our Annual Report, filed on March 3, 2025;
- our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2025, filed on May 8, 2025 and August 7, 2025, respectively;
- our Current Reports on Form 8-K, filed on <u>December 4, 2024, March 31, 2025 (two reports)</u>, <u>May 12, 2025, June 23, 2025</u> and <u>June 30, 2025</u> (except that, with respect to each of the foregoing Current Reports, any portions thereof which are furnished and not filed shall not be deemed incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement);
- the information specifically incorporated by reference into our Annual Report from our definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed on April 30, 2025; and
- the description of our common stock contained in Exhibit 4.1 set forth in our Annual Report and any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description.

All documents that we file (but not those that we furnish) with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act on or after the date of this prospectus supplement and prior to the termination of the offering of shares of our common stock hereby will be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and will automatically update and supersede the information in this prospectus supplement and any previously filed document.

If requested, we will provide to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom a copy of this prospectus supplement is delivered, a copy of any or all of the information that has been incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement but not delivered with this prospectus supplement (other than the exhibits to such documents which are not specifically incorporated by reference herein). To obtain a copy of these filings at no cost, you may write or telephone us at the following address:

Hut 8 Corp. 1101 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1500 Miami, Florida 33131 (305) 224-6427



HUT 8 CORP.

Common Stock Preferred Stock Depositary Shares Debt Securities Warrants Subscription Rights Purchase Contracts Purchase Units

We may offer, issue and sell from time to time, in one or more offerings, in amounts, at prices and on terms determined at the time of any such offering, (1) shares of our common stock, (2) shares of our preferred stock, which we may issue in one or more series, (3) depositary shares representing fractional shares of our preferred stock, (4) debt securities, which may be issued in one or more series and which may be senior debt securities or subordinated debt securities, (5) warrants to purchase shares of our common stock, shares of our preferred stock or our debt securities, (7) purchase contracts to purchase shares of our common stock, shares of our preferred stock or our debt securities or (8) purchase units, each representing ownership of a purchase contract and debt securities or debt obligations of third-parties, including U.S. treasury securities, or any combination of the foregoing, securing the holder's obligation to purchase our common stock or other securities under the purchase contracts.

In addition, selling securityholders may offer and sell, from time to time, these securities on terms described in a prospectus supplement. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of our securities by the selling securityholders.

Each time we sell securities, we will provide a supplement to this prospectus, to the extent necessary, that contains specific information about the terms of that offering as well as the amounts, prices and terms of the securities offered. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus with respect to that offering. You should carefully read this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement before you invest in any of our securities.

We and/or the selling securityholders may offer and sell these securities to or through one or more underwriters, dealers and agents, or directly to purchasers, on a continuous or delayed basis.

We may offer securities through underwriting syndicates managed or co-managed by one or more underwriters or dealers, through agents or directly to purchasers, or through a combination of these methods. These securities may also be resold by selling securityholders. If required, the prospectus supplement for each offering of securities will describe the plan of distribution for that offering. For general information about the distribution of securities offered, please see "Plan of Distribution" in this prospectus. No securities may be sold without delivery of this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement describing the method and terms of the offering of such securities.

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market ("Nasdaq") and the Toronto Stock Exchange (the "TSX") under the symbol "HUT." On December 3, 2024, the closing price of our common stock on Nasdaq and the TSX was \$25.06 and C\$35.22 per share, respectively.

We are an "emerging growth company" under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the "JOBS Act") and applicable rules of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). As such, we are eligible to rely on reduced public company reporting requirements.

Investing in our securities involves a number of risks. See "Risk Factors" beginning on page 5 and the supplemental risk factors contained in any applicable prospectus supplement and in the documents incorporated by reference for a description of the risks you should consider when evaluating such investment.

Neither the SEC nor any state, provincial or territorial securities commission, nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supplement is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is December 4, 2024.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	1
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	2
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	3
THE COMPANY	4
RISK FACTORS	<u>5</u>
USE OF PROCEEDS	<u>6</u>
DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES	<u>7</u>
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	<u>8</u>
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES	<u>11</u>
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES	<u>12</u>
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS	<u>14</u>
DESCRIPTION OF SUBSCRIPTION RIGHTS	<u>15</u>
DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND PURCHASE UNITS	<u>16</u>
SELLING SECURITYHOLDERS	<u>17</u>
<u>PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION</u>	<u>18</u>
LEGAL MATTERS	<u>19</u>
EXPERTS	<u>19</u>

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of an "automatic shelf" registration statement that we filed with the SEC as a "well-known seasoned issuer" as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), using a "shelf" registration process. Under the shelf registration process, we and/or the selling securityholders may from time to time, offer and sell to the public any combination of the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings. Each time that we sell securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement to this prospectus, to the extent necessary, that contains specific information about the securities being offered and sold and the specific terms of that offering. We may also authorize one or more free writing prospectuses to be provided to you that may contain material information relating to these offerings. The prospectus supplement or free writing prospectus and, update or change information contained in this prospectus with respect to that offering. If there is any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus and the applicable prospectus, you should rely on the prospectus supplement or free writing prospectus, as applicable. Before purchasing any securities, you should carefully read both this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement (and any applicable free writing prospectuses), together with the additional information described under "Where You Can Find More Information."

We may include agreements as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part. In reviewing such agreements, please remember that they are included to provide you with information regarding their terms and are not intended to provide any other factual or disclosure information about us or the other parties to the agreements. The agreements may contain representations and warranties by each of the parties to the applicable agreement. These representations and warranties have been made solely for the benefit of the other parties to the applicable agreement and:

- · should not in all instances be treated as categorical statements of fact, but rather as a way of allocating the risk to one of the parties if those statements prove to be inaccurate;
- · may have been qualified by disclosures that were made to the other party in connection with the negotiation of the applicable agreement, which disclosures would not necessarily be reflected in the agreement;
- may apply standards of materiality in a way that is different from what may be viewed as material to you or other investors; and
- were made only as of the date of the applicable agreement or such other date or dates as may be specified in the agreement and are subject to more recent developments.

Accordingly, these representations and warranties may not describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other time. Additional information about us may be found elsewhere in the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part and our other public filings, which are available without charge through the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov.

Neither we nor the selling securityholders have not authorized anyone to provide you with any information or to make any representations other than those contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus, any accompanying prospectus supplement and any free writing prospectus prepared by or on behalf of us. We and the selling securityholders take no responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. We and the selling securityholders are not making offers to sell the securities in any jurisdiction in which an offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to anyone to whom it is unlawful to make an offer or solicitation.

You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement to this prospectus is accurate only as of the date on its respective cover, that the information appearing in any applicable free writing prospectus is accurate only as of the date of that free writing prospectus and that any information incorporated by reference is accurate only as of the date of the document incorporated by reference, unless we indicate otherwise. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

When used in this prospectus, the terms "Hut 8," the "Company," "we," "our" and "us" refer to Hut 8 Corp. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires. References to "\$" refer to United States dollars and references to "C\$" refer to Canadian dollars.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Our SEC filings are available to the public at the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" information into this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is deemed to be part of this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement, and information filed with the SEC subsequent to this prospectus and prior to the termination of the particular offering referred to in such prospectus supplement will automatically update and supersede this information. This prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement incorporate by reference the documents set forth below that we have previously filed with the SEC (other than information deemed furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules, including Items 2.02, 7.01 or 9.01 of Form 8-K, as applicable).

- our Transition Report on Form 10-K for the transition period from July 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on March 28, 2024 (the "Annual Report");
- the information specifically incorporated by reference into our Annual Report from our definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A, filed with the SEC on April 26, 2024;
- · our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2024, June 30, 2024 and September 30, 2024, filed with the SEC on May 15, 2024, August 13, 2024 and November 13, 2024, respectively;
- · our Current Reports on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on <u>January 19, 2024, January 26, 2024, February 12, 2024, March 13, 2024, June 24, 2024</u> (two reports), <u>August 6, 2024</u> and <u>October 1, 2024</u>; and
- the description of our common stock contained in Exhibit 4.1 of our Annual Report, and any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description.

All documents filed by us pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of this prospectus and before the termination of the offering of the securities under this prospectus shall also be deemed to be incorporated herein by reference. We are not, however, incorporating by reference any documents or portions thereof that are not deemed "filed" with the SEC, including any information furnished pursuant to Items 2.02, 7.01 or 9.01 of Form 8-K.

If requested, we will provide to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom a prospectus is delivered, a copy of any or all of the information that has been incorporated by reference in the prospectus but not delivered with the prospectus. Exhibits to the filings will not be sent, however, unless those exhibits have specifically been incorporated by reference into such documents. To obtain a copy of these filings at no cost, you may write or telephone us at the following address:

Hut 8 Corp. 1101 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1500 Miami, Florida 33131 (305) 224-6427

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement and any documents incorporated by reference contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act, Section 21E of the Exchange Act, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions, that, if proven incorrect or do not materialize, could cause our results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are generally identified by the words "intend," "plan," "may," "should," "will," "project," "estimate," "believe," "expect," "continue," "potential," "opportunity," and similar expressions. All statements other than statements of historical fact are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements may include, for example, statements about:

- · expectations relating to our future financial performance;
- the ability to expand our business or enter into new lines of business and provide new offerings, services, and features and make enhancements to our business;
- · the ability to compete with existing and new competitors in existing and new markets and offerings;
- · the ability to acquire new businesses or pursue strategic transactions;
- · the outcome of any material litigation to which the Company is a party;
- the ability of our cash flows generated from operating activities and our Bitcoin held in reserve to meet our anticipated cash requirements in the short-term;
- · our ability to access the capital markets for any long-term funding not provided by operating cash flows and cash on hand;
- · the expectations regarding the effects of existing and developing laws and regulations; and
- · global and domestic economic conditions and their impact on demand for our markets and offerings.

The following factors or events, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements:

- · our ability to establish and maintain strategic collaborations or other arrangements, and the terms of and timing such arrangements;
- · changes in our financial or operating performance or more generally due to broader stock market movements and the performance of peer group companies;
- · competitive pressures in the markets in which we operate;
- · changes in laws or regulations;
- · changes in general economic conditions; and
- the other important factors discussed in our Annual Report, any subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or Current Reports on Form 8-K, as updated by our subsequent filings under the Exchange Act.

We operate in a competitive and rapidly changing environment. The risks and uncertainties described and referred to above are not exhaustive and further information concerning us and our business, including factors that potentially could materially affect our business, financial condition, or operating results, may emerge from time to time. You should read this prospectus, any accompanying prospectus supplement and any documents incorporated by reference with the understanding that our actual future results, performance, and achievements may be materially different from what we expect. We qualify all of our forward-looking statements with these cautionary statements and urge you not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. The forward-looking is tatements in this prospectus, any accompanying prospectus supplement and any documents incorporated by reference, speak only as of the date of such document. Except as required by law, we do not assume any obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements for any reason, even if new information becomes available in the future.

THE COMPANY

General

Hut 8 is an energy infrastructure operator and Bitcoin miner with self-mining, hosting, managed services, and traditional data center operations across North America. We acquire, design, build, manage, and operate data centers that power compute-intensive workloads such as Bitcoin mining, high performance computing, and artificial intelligence.

Our Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 1101 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1500, Miami, FL 33131 and our telephone number is (305) 224-6427. We were incorporated in the State of Delaware on January 27, 2023 for the purposes of effecting the business combination pursuant to which, among other things, Hut 8 Mining Corp. and Hut 8 Holdings Inc., each a corporation existing under the laws of British Columbia, amalgamated to continue as one British Columbia corporation ("Hut Amalco"), and both Hut Amalco and U.S. Data Mining Group, Inc., a Nevada corporation doing business as "US BITCOIN," became our wholly-owned subsidiaries. We maintain a website at www.hut8.com. The information found on, or otherwise accessible through, our website is not incorporated by reference in this prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supplement, and you should not consider it a part of this prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supplement.

RISK FACTORS

Investing in our securities involves risk. You should carefully consider the risks incorporated by reference to our Annual Report, any subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or Current Reports on Form 8-K, and all other information contained or incorporated by reference into this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement as updated by our subsequent filings under the Exchange Act, and the risk factors and other information contained in any applicable prospectus supplement before acquiring any such securities. The risks and uncertainties described in our SEC filings are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties that we are unaware of, or that we currently believe are not material, may also become important factors that adversely affect our business. If any such risks and uncertainties actually occur, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be materially and adversely affected, the market price of our securities could decline and you could lose all or part of your investment. See "Where You Can Find More Information" and "Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."

USE OF PROCEEDS

Except as otherwise set forth in any accompanying prospectus supplement, we expect to use the net proceeds from the sale of securities by us for general corporate purposes, which may include, without limitation, debt repayment, acquisitions or other significant corporate transactions.

Unless set forth in an accompanying prospectus supplement, we will not receive any proceeds in the event that securities are sold by a selling securityholder.

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

This prospectus contains summary descriptions of our common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares, debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts and purchase units that may be offered and sold from time to time. These summaries are not meant to be a complete description of each security. The particular terms of any security to be issued pursuant hereto will be set forth in a related prospectus supplement and/or free writing prospectus. This prospectus and the accompanying prospectus supplement and/or free writing prospectus will contain the material terms and conditions for each security.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following summary description of our capital stock is based on the provisions of the General Corporation Law of Delaware (the "DGCL"), our amended and restated certificate of incorporation (the "Certificate of Incorporation") and our amended and restated bylaws (the "Bylaws"). This description does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the DGCL, as it may be amended from time to time, and to the terms of our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, which are incorporated by reference as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. See "Where You Can Find More Information."

Our authorized capital stock consists of 1,000,000,000 shares of common stock, par value of \$0.01 per share, and 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value of \$0.01 per share. As of December 3, 2024, there were 93,678,729 shares of common stock outstanding and no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

Common Stock

Voting Rights

Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share on all matters on which stockholders are generally entitled to vote.

Dividends

Holders of our common stock will be entitled to receive dividends as may be declared from time to time by our board of directors out of funds legally available therefor.

Liquidation and Dissolution

Holders of our common stock are entitled to share, pro rata, upon any liquidation or dissolution, in all remaining assets available for distribution to stockholders after payment or providing for our liabilities.

Other Rights

Holders of our common stock have no preemptive rights and no rights to convert their shares of our common stock into any other securities. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to our common stock. All outstanding shares of our common stock are fully paid and non-assessable. The rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of our common stock are subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of any series of preferred stock that we may designate and issue in the future.

Preferred Stock

Under the terms of our Certificate of Incorporation, our board of directors has the authority, without further action by our stockholders (except as required by Nasdaq listing standards, the applicable rules of any other stock exchange on which our securities are listed or applicable law), to issue up to 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series with such designations, powers, preferences, special rights, qualifications, limitations and restrictions as our board of directors may determine from time to time. The powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special rights of each series of preferred stock, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, if any, may differ from those of any and all other series outstanding. The issuance of preferred stock could adversely affect the voting power of holders of our common stock and the likelihood that such holders will receive dividend payments and payments upon liquidation.

Anti-Takeover Effects of our Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and DGCL

A number of provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation, our Bylaws and the DGCL may make it more difficult to acquire control of us or remove our management. We expect that these provisions, which are summarized below, will discourage coercive takeover practices or inadequate takeover bids. These provisions are also designed to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of us to first negotiate with our board of directors, which we believe may result in an improvement of the terms of any such acquisition in favor of our stockholders. However, they also give our board of directors the power to discourage acquisitions that some stockholders may favor.

Structure of Board

Our board of directors is elected annually. Subject to the rights of holders of any class or series of preferred stock to elect directors, any vacancies on our board of directors caused by death, removal or resignation of any director, and any newly created directorships resulting from an increase in the authorized number of directors, will be permitted to be filled only by a majority vote of the directors then in office, even if less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director. This provision could prevent a stockholder from obtaining majority representation on our board of directors by allowing our board of directors to enlarge the board of directors and fill the new directorships with its own nominees. Our board of directors currently consists of eight (8) directors.

Advance Notice of Proposals and Nominations

Our Bylaws provide that stockholders must give timely written notice to bring business before an annual meeting of stockholders or to nominate candidates for election as directors at an annual meeting of stockholders. Generally, to be timely, a stockholder's notice must be given to the corporate secretary at our principal executive offices not later than the 90th day nor earlier than the 120th day prior to the date of such a meeting. Our Bylaws also specify the form and content of a stockholder's notice. These provisions may prevent stockholders from bringing matters before an annual meeting of stockholders or from nominating candidates for election as directors at an annual meeting of stockholders.

Limits on Special Meetings

Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that any action required or permitted to be taken by our stockholders must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of our stockholders and may not be effected by any consent in writing by our stockholders. Our Certificate of Incorporation further provides that special meetings of stockholders may be called only by the chairperson of our board of directors, our chief executive officer or the directors entitled to cast a majority of the votes of the whole board of directors. These provisions might delay the ability of our stockholders to force consideration of a proposal or for stockholders to take any action, including the removal of directors.

No Cumulative Voting

The DGCL provides that stockholders are not entitled to cumulate votes in the election of directors unless a corporation's certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Our Certificate of Incorporation does not provide for cumulative voting.

Authorized but Unissued Shares

The authorized but unissued shares of common stock and preferred stock are available for future issuance without stockholder approval (except as required by Nasdaq listing standards, the applicable rules of any other stock exchange on which our securities are listed or applicable law). These additional shares may be used for, among other things, a variety of corporate finance transactions, acquisitions, and employee benefit plans. The existence of authorized but unissued and unreserved common stock and preferred stock could discourage an attempt to obtain control of us by means of a proxy contest, tender offer, merger, or otherwise.

Takeover Statutes

Section 203 of the DGCL generally prohibits "business combinations," including mergers, sales and leases of assets, issuances of securities and similar transactions, by a corporation or a subsidiary with an interested stockholder who beneficially owns 15% or more of a corporation's voting stock within three (3) years after the person or entity becomes an interested stockholder, unless: (i) the board of directors of the target corporation has approved, before the acquisition time, either the business combination or the transaction that resulted in the person becoming an interested stockholder, (ii) upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the person becoming an interested stockholder, the person owned at least 85% of the corporation's voting stock (excluding shares owned by directors who are officers and shares owned by employee stock plans in which participants do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares will be tendered in a tender or exchange offer) or (iii) after the person or entity becomes an interested stockholder, the business combination is approved by the board of directors of the corporation and authorized at a meeting of the stockholders by the affirmative vote of at least 66 and 23% of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation not owned by the interested stockholder.

A Delaware corporation may elect in its certificate of incorporation or bylaws not to be governed by this particular Delaware law. However, we have not opted out of Section 203 of the DGCL and are therefore subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL.

Exclusive Forum

Unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a duty (including any fiduciary duty) owed by any of our current or former directors, officers, stockholders or other employees to Hut 8 or our stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL, our Certificate of Incorporation or our Bylaws, (iv) any action asserting a claim, including a claim in the right of Hut 8, as to which the DGCL confers jurisdiction upon the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, or (v) any action asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine of the State of Delaware, shall in each case be the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware or, if such court lacks jurisdiction, any state or federal court located within the State of Delaware.

Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over all claims brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. Accordingly, the federal district courts of the United States of America shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act or the rules and regulations thereunder.

Section 27 of the Exchange Act creates exclusive federal jurisdiction over all claims brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. Accordingly, the exclusive forum provision does not apply to suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules and regulations thereunder.

Limitation on Director and Officer Liability

Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL, none of our directors or officers shall be personally liable to Hut 8 or our stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as director or officer. The DGCL requires that such liability for breach of fiduciary duty as a director does not arise from:

- · any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to Hut 8 or our stockholders;
- · acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;
- unlawful payments of dividends, certain stock repurchases or redemptions; or
- · any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.

Our Bylaws contains provisions that provide for indemnification of our officers and directors to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL.

Section 145 of the DGCL empowers a Delaware corporation to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation) by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of such corporation or is or was serving at the request of such corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise. The indemnity may include expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding, provided that such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe such person's conduct was unlawful. A Delaware corporation may indemnify directors, officers, employees and other agents of such corporation in an action by or in the right of the corporation under the same conditions, except that no indemnification is permitted without judicial approval if the person to be indemnified has been adjudged to be liable to the corporation. Where a present or former director or officer of the corporation is successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to above or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, the corporation must indemnify such person against the expenses (including attorneys' fees) which he or she actually and reasonably incurred in connection therewith.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Our transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

Listing

Our common stock is listed on Nasdaq and the TSX under the symbol "HUT."

DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES

We may offer depositary receipts representing fractional shares of our preferred stock, rather than full shares of preferred stock. The shares of preferred stock represented by depositary shares will be deposited under a depositary agreement between us and a bank or trust company that meets certain requirements and is selected by us (the "Bank Depositary"). Each owner of a depositary share will be entitled to all the rights and preferences of the preferred stock represented by the depositary share.

The description in an accompanying prospectus supplement of any depositary shares we offer will not necessarily be complete and will be qualified in its entirety by reference to the applicable depositary agreement, which will be filed with the SEC if we offer depositary shares. For more information on how you can obtain copies of any depositary agreement if we offer depositary shares, see "Where You Can Find More Information." We urge you to read the applicable depositary agreement and any accompanying prospectus supplement in their entirety.

Dividends and Other Distributions

If we pay a cash distribution or dividend on a series of preferred stock represented by depositary shares, the Bank Depositary will distribute such dividends to the record holders of such depositary shares. If the distributions are in property other than cash, the Bank Depositary will distribute the property to the record holders of the depositary shares. However, if the Bank Depositary determines that it is not feasible to make the distribution of property, the Bank Depositary may, with our approval, sell such property and distribute the net proceeds from such sale to the record holders of the depositary shares.

Redemption of Depositary Shares

If we redeem a series of preferred stock represented by depositary shares, the Bank Depositary will redeem the depositary shares from the proceeds received by the Bank Depositary in connection with the redemption. The redemption price per depositary share will equal the applicable fraction of the redemption price per share of the preferred stock. If fewer than all the depositary shares are redeemed, the depositary shares to be redeemed will be selected by lot or pro rata as the Bank Depositary may determine.

Voting the Preferred Stock

Upon receipt of notice of any meeting at which the holders of the preferred stock represented by depositary shares are entitled to vote, the Bank Depositary will mail the notice to the record holders of the depositary shares relating to such preferred stock. Each record holder of these depositary shares on the record date, which will be the same date as the record date for the preferred stock, may instruct the Bank Depositary as to how to vote the preferred stock represented by such holder's depositary shares. The Bank Depositary will endeavor, insofar as practicable, to vote the amount of the preferred stock represented by such depositary shares in accordance with such instructions, and we will take all action that the Bank Depositary deems necessary in order to enable the Bank Depositary to do so. The Bank Depositary will abstain from voting shares of the preferred stock to the extent it does not receive specific instructions from the holders of depositary shares representing such preferred stock.

Amendment and Termination of the Depositary Agreement

The form of depositary receipt evidencing the depositary shares and any provision of the depositary agreement may be amended by agreement between the Bank Depositary and us. However, any amendment that materially and adversely alters the rights of the holders of depositary shares will not be effective unless such amendment has been approved by the holders of at least a majority of the depositary shares then outstanding. The depositary agreement may be terminated by the Bank Depositary or us only if (1) all outstanding depositary shares have been redeemed or (2) there has been a final distribution in respect of the preferred stock in connection with any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our company and such distribution has been distributed to the holders of depositary receipts.

Withdrawal of Preferred Stock

Except as may be provided otherwise in an accompanying prospectus supplement, upon surrender of depositary receipts at the principal office of the Bank Depositary, subject to the terms of the depositary agreement, the owner of the depositary shares may demand delivery of the number of whole shares of preferred stock and all money and other property, if any, represented by those depositary shares. Partial shares of preferred stock will not be issued. If the depositary receipts delivered by the holder evidence a number of depositary shares in excess of the number of depositary shares representing the number of whole shares of preferred stock to be withdrawn, the Bank Depositary will deliver to such holder at the same time a new depositary receipt evidencing the excess number of depositary shares. Holders of withdrawn preferred stock may not thereafter deposit those shares under the depositary agreement or receive depositary receipts evidencing depositary shares therefor.

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES

We may offer debt securities in one or more series, which may be senior debt securities or subordinated debt securities and which may be convertible into another security.

The following description briefly sets forth certain general terms and provisions of the debt securities. The particular terms of the debt securities offered by any prospectus supplement and the extent, if any, to which the following general terms and provisions may apply to the debt securities, will be described in an accompanying prospectus supplement. Unless otherwise specified in an accompanying prospectus supplement, our debt securities will be issued in one or more series under an indenture to be entered into between us and the trustee to be named therein. A form of the indenture is attached as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part. The terms of the debt securities will include those set forth in the indenture and those made a part of the indenture by the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended ("TIA"). You should read the summary below, any accompanying prospectus supplement and the provisions of the indenture in their entirety before investing in our debt securities.

The aggregate principal amount of debt securities that may be issued under the indenture is unlimited. The prospectus supplement relating to any series of debt securities that we may offer will contain the specific terms of the debt securities. These terms may include, among others, the following:

- · the title and aggregate principal amount of the debt securities and any limit on the aggregate principal amount of such series;
- · any applicable subordination provisions for any subordinated debt securities;
- · the maturity date(s) or method for determining same;
- · the interest rate(s) or the method for determining same;
- the dates on which interest will accrue or the method for determining dates on which interest will accrue and dates on which interest will be payable and whether interest will be payable in cash, additional securities or some combination thereof;
- whether the debt securities are convertible or exchangeable into other securities and any related terms and conditions;
- · redemption or early repayment provisions;
- · authorized denominations;
- · if other than the principal amount, the principal amount of debt securities payable upon acceleration;
- · place(s) where payment of principal and interest may be made, where debt securities may be presented and where notices or demands upon the company may be made;
- · the form or forms of the debt securities of the series including such legends as may be required by applicable law;
- whether the debt securities will be issued in whole or in part in the form of one or more global securities and the date as of which the securities are dated if other than the date of original issuance:
- · whether the debt securities are secured and the terms of such security;
- · the amount of discount or premium, if any, with which the debt securities will be issued;
- · any covenants applicable to the particular debt securities being issued;

- · any additions or changes in the defaults and events of default applicable to the particular debt securities being issued;
- the guarantors of each series, if any, and the extent of the guarantees (including provisions relating to seniority, subordination and release of the guarantees), if any,
- the currency, currencies or currency units in which the purchase price for, the principal of and any premium and any interest on, the debt securities will be payable;
- the time period within which, the manner in which and the terms and conditions upon which we or the holders of the debt securities can select the payment currency;
- our obligation or right to redeem, purchase or repay debt securities under a sinking fund, amortization or analogous provision;
- · any restriction or conditions on the transferability of the debt securities;
- · provisions granting special rights to holders of the debt securities upon occurrence of specified events;
- · additions or changes relating to compensation or reimbursement of the trustee of the series of debt securities;
- · provisions relating to the modification of the indenture both with and without the consent of holders of debt securities issued under the indenture and the execution of supplemental indentures for such series; and
- · any other terms of the debt securities (which terms shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of the TIA, but may modify, amend, supplement or delete any of the terms of the indenture with respect to such series of debt securities).

General

We may sell the debt securities, including original issue discount securities, at par or at a substantial discount below their stated principal amount. Unless we inform you otherwise in a prospectus supplement, we may issue additional debt securities of a particular series without the consent of the holders of the debt securities of such series or any other series outstanding at the time of issuance. Any such additional debt securities, together with all other outstanding debt securities of that series, will constitute a single series of securities under the indenture.

We will describe in an accompanying prospectus supplement any other special considerations for any debt securities we sell that are denominated in a currency or currency unit other than U.S. dollars. In addition, debt securities may be issued where the amount of principal and/or interest payable is determined by reference to one or more currency exchange rates, commodity prices, equity indices or other factors. Holders of such securities may receive a principal amount or a payment of interest that is greater than or less than the amount of principal or interest otherwise payable on such dates, depending upon the value of the applicable currencies, commodities, equity indices or other factors. Information as to the methods for determining the amount of principal or interest, if any, payable on any date, and the currencies, commodities, equity indices or other factors to which the amount payable on such date is linked will be described in an accompanying prospectus supplement.

U.S. federal income tax consequences and special considerations, if any, applicable to any such series will be described in an accompanying prospectus supplement.

We expect most debt securities to be issued in fully registered form without coupons and in denominations of \$2,000 and any integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof. Subject to the limitations provided in the indenture and in an accompanying prospectus supplement, debt securities that are issued in registered form may be transferred or exchanged at the designated corporate trust office of the trustee, without the payment of any service charge, other than any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith.

Global Securities

Unless we inform you otherwise in an accompanying prospectus supplement, the debt securities of a series may be issued in whole or in part in the form of one or more global securities that will be deposited with, or on behalf of, a depositary identified in an accompanying prospectus supplement. Unless and until a global security is exchanged in whole or in part for the individual debt securities, a global security may not be transferred except as a whole by the depositary for such global security to a nominee of such depositary or by a nominee of such depositary to such depositary or another nominee of such depositary or by such depositary or any such nominee to a successor of such depositary or a nominee of such successor.

Governing Law

The indenture and the debt securities shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of New York.

DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS

We may issue warrants for the purchase of shares of our common stock, shares of preferred stock or our debt securities. We may issue warrants independently or together with other securities, and they may be attached to or separate from the other securities. Each series of warrants is expected to be issued under a separate warrant agreement that we will enter into with a bank or trust company, as warrant agent, as detailed in an accompanying prospectus supplement. The warrant agent will act solely as our agent in connection with the warrants and will not assume any obligation, or agency or trust relationship, with you.

The prospectus supplement relating to a particular issue of warrants will describe the terms of those warrants, including, when applicable:

- the offering price;
- · the currency or currencies, including composite currencies, in which the purchase price and/or exercise price of the warrants may be payable;
- · the number of warrants offered;
- · the exercise price and the amount of securities you will receive upon exercise;
- · the procedure for exercise of the warrants and the circumstances, if any, that will cause the warrants to be automatically exercised;
- the rights, if any, we have to redeem the warrants;
- the date on which the right to exercise the warrants will commence and the date on which the warrants will expire;
- · the name of the warrant agent; and
- · any other material terms of the warrants.

After warrants expire they will become void. The prospectus supplement may provide for the adjustment of the exercise price of the warrants.

Warrants may be exercised at the appropriate office of the warrant agent or any other office indicated in an accompanying prospectus supplement. Before the exercise of warrants, holders will not have any of the rights of holders of the securities purchasable upon exercise and will not be entitled to payments made to holders of those securities.

The description in an accompanying prospectus supplement of any warrants we offer will not necessarily be complete and will be qualified in its entirety by reference to the applicable warrant agreement, which will be filed with the SEC if we offer warrants. For more information on how you can obtain copies of any warrant agreement if we offer warrants, see "Where You Can Find More Information." We urge you to read the applicable warrant agreement and any accompanying prospectus supplement in their entirety.

DESCRIPTION OF SUBSCRIPTION RIGHTS

We may issue subscription rights to purchase shares of our common stock, shares of our preferred stock or our debt securities. We may issue subscription rights independently or together with any other offered security, which may or may not be transferable by the stockholder. In connection with any offering of subscription rights, we may enter into a standby arrangement with one or more underwriters or other purchasers pursuant to which the underwriters or other purchasers may be required to purchase any securities remaining unsubscribed for after such offering.

The prospectus supplement relating to any subscription rights we may offer will contain the specific terms of the subscription rights. These terms may include the following:

- · the price, if any, for the subscription rights;
- the number and terms of each share of common stock or preferred stock or debt securities which may be purchased per each subscription right;
- · the exercise price payable for each share of common stock or preferred stock or debt securities upon the exercise of the subscription rights;
- · the extent to which the subscription rights are transferable;
- · any provisions for adjustment of the number or amount of securities receivable upon exercise of the subscription rights or the exercise price of the subscription rights
- · any other terms of the subscription rights, including the terms, procedures and limitations relating to the exchange and exercise of the subscription rights;
- · the date on which the right to exercise the subscription rights shall commence, and the date on which the subscription rights shall expire;
- the extent to which the subscription rights may include an over-subscription privilege with respect to unsubscribed securities; and
- if applicable, the material terms of any standby underwriting or purchase arrangement entered into by us in connection with the offering of subscription rights.

The description in an accompanying prospectus supplement of any subscription rights we offer will not necessarily be complete and will be qualified in its entirety by reference to the applicable subscription rights certificate or subscription rights agreement, which will be filed with the SEC if we offer subscription rights. For more information on how you can obtain copies of any subscription rights certificate or subscription rights agreement if we offer subscription rights, see "Where You Can Find More Information." We urge you to read the applicable subscription rights certificate, the applicable subscription rights agreement and any accompanying prospectus supplement in their entirety.

DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND PURCHASE UNITS

We may issue purchase contracts, including contracts obligating holders to purchase from us, and obligating us to sell to the holders, a specified number of shares of our common stock, shares of our preferred stock or our debt securities at a future date or dates, which we refer to in this prospectus as purchase contracts. The price of the securities and the number of securities may be fixed at the time the purchase contracts are issued or may be determined by reference to a specific formula set forth in the purchase contracts, and may be subject to adjustment under anti-dilution formulas. The purchase contracts may be issued separately or as part of units consisting of a stock purchase contract and our debt securities or preferred securities or debt obligations of third parties, including U.S. treasury securities, or any combination of the foregoing, securing the holders' obligations to purchase the securities under the purchase contracts, which we refer to herein as purchase units. The purchase contracts may require holders to secure their obligations under the purchase contracts also may require us to make periodic payments to the holders of the purchase contracts are securities or the purchase units, as the case may be, or vice versa, and those payments may be unsecured or pre-funded in whole or in part.

The description in an accompanying prospectus supplement of any purchase contract or purchase unit we offer will not necessarily be complete and will be qualified in its entirety by reference to the applicable purchase contract or purchase unit, which will be filed with the SEC if we offer purchase contracts or purchase units. For more information on how you can obtain copies of any purchase contract or purchase unit we may offer, see "Where You Can Find More Information." We urge you to read the applicable purchase contract or applicable purchase unit and any accompanying prospectus supplement in their entirety.

SELLING SECURITYHOLDERS

Information about selling securityholders, where applicable, will be set forth in a prospectus supplement, in a post-effective amendment or in filings we make with the SEC under the Exchange Act which are incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We or the selling securityholders may sell the securities being offered hereby in one or more of the following ways from time to time:

- · to or through agents, dealers or underwriters;
- · directly to one or more purchasers;
- · through ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker-dealer solicits purchasers;
- · through an exchange distribution in accordance with the rules of the applicable exchange;
- by pledge to secure debts and other obligations;
- through block trades in which the broker-dealer will attempt to sell the shares as agent but may position and resell a portion of the block as principal to facilitate the transaction;
- · through purchases by a broker-dealer as principal and resale by the broker-dealer for its account;
- · through privately negotiated transactions;
- through a combination of any of these methods; or
- \cdot through any other method permitted pursuant to applicable law.

In addition, we may enter into derivative or hedging transactions with third parties, or sell securities not covered by this prospectus to third parties in privately negotiated transactions. In connection with such a transaction, the third parties may sell securities covered by and pursuant to this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement. If so, the third party may use securities borrowed from us or the selling securityholders or others to settle such sales and may use securities received from us to close out any related short positions. We or the selling securityholders may also loan or pledge securities covered by this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement to third parties, who may sell the loaned securities or, in an event of default in the case of a pledge, sell the pledged securities pursuant to this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement.

We and/or the selling securityholders will identify the specific plan of distribution, including any underwriters, dealers, agents or direct purchasers and their compensation in a prospectus supplement.

LEGAL MATTERS

Unless otherwise indicated in any accompanying prospectus supplement, Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP will provide opinions regarding the authorization and validity of the securities. Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP may also provide opinions regarding certain other matters. Any underwriters will be advised about legal matters by their own counsel, which will be named in an accompanying prospectus supplement.

EXPERTS

Our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2023 and for the period from July 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023 appearing in the Annual Report have been audited by Raymond Chabot Grant Thornton LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in their report thereon included therein, and incorporated herein by reference. Such financial statements are, and audited financial statements to be included in subsequently filed documents will be, incorporated herein in reliance upon the report of Raymond Chabot Grant Thornton LLP pertaining to such financial statements (to the extent covered by consents filed with the SEC) given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements of U.S. Data Mining Group, Inc. as of June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021 and for each of the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and the period from December 4, 2020 (inception) through June 30, 2021 incorporated in this prospectus by reference from the Annual Report have been audited by RSM US LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports thereon, incorporated herein by reference, and have been incorporated in this prospectus and the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part in reliance upon such reports and upon the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements of TZRC LLC, as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for the years then ended have been audited by L J Soldinger Associates, LLC, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report thereon included in the Annual Report, and incorporated herein by reference. Such financial statements are incorporated herein in reliance upon the report of L J Soldinger Associates, LLC pertaining to such financial statements (to the extent covered by consents filed with the SEC) given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.



Cantor

Cantor

Keefe, Bruyette & Woods

A Stifel Company

The
Benchmark
Company

BTIG

Canaccord
Genuity

Canaccord
Genuity

Hallum
Group LLC

August 22, 2025

Calculation of Filing Fee Tables

S-3

Hut 8 Corp.

Table 1: Newly Registered and Carry Forward Securities

□Not Applicable

	Security Type	Security Class Title	Fee Calculation or Carry Forward Rule	Amount Registered	Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Unit		Fee Rate	Amount of Registration Fee	Carry Forward Form Type	Carry Forward File Number	Effective	Filing Fee Previously Paid in Connection with Unsold Securities to be Carried Forward
					Newly	Registered Secu	rities					
Fees to be Paid	1 Equity	Common Stock, par value \$0.01 per share	457(o)			\$ 799,410,286.68	0.0001531	\$ 122,389.71				
Fees Previously Paid	2 Equity	Common Stock, par value \$0.01 per share	Other			\$ 200,589,713.32		\$ 30,710.29				
					Carr	y Forward Securi	ties					
Carry Forward Securities												
		То	tal Fees Prev Total	Fee Offsets:		\$ 1,000,000,000.00		\$ 153,100.00 \$ 30,710.29 \$ 0.00				
			N	let Fee Due:				\$ 122,389.71				

Offering Note

The filing fee is calculated and being paid pursuant to Rule 457(o) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), based on the incremental maximum aggregate offering price. This "Calculation of Filing Fee" table shall be deemed to update the "Calculation of Filing Fee" table in the registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-3ASR (File No. 333-283579) (the "Registration Statement") in accordance with Rules 456(b) and 457(r) under the Securities Act.

Represents the aggregate amount of \$200,589,713.32 that remains unsold of the \$500,000,000.00 of the registrant's common stock, par value \$0.01, that was registered under this Registration Statement and the prospectus supplement dated December 4, 2024 (the "prior prospectus supplement"). The offering pursuant to the prior prospectus supplement has terminated as of the date hereof.

Table 2: Fee Offset Claims and Sources

☑Not Applicable

		Registrant or Filer Name	Form or Filing Type	File Number	Initial Filing Date		Fee Offset Claimed	with Eco	Security Title Associated with Fee Offset Claimed	Unsold Securities Associated with Fee Offset Claimed	Unsold Aggregate Offering Amount Associated with Fee Offset Claimed	Fee Paid with Fee Offset Source
				Ru	les 457(b) and 0	-11(a)(2)					
Fee Offset Claims	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Fee Offset Sources	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
					Rul	le 457(p))					
Fee Offset Claims	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Fee Offset Sources	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

Table 3: Combined Prospectuses

☑Not Applicable

IUDIC	o. combined i rospe	3014303				E1101	Тррпоавіс	
	Security Type	Security Class Title	Amount of Securities	Maximum Aggregate Offering Price of	Form Type	File Number	Initial Effective Date	

		Previously Registered	Securities Previously Registered			
N/A N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

Narrative Disclosure

The maximum aggregate offering price of the securities to which the prospectus relates is \$1,000,000,000.00. The prospectus is a final prospectus for the related offering.

The maximum aggregate offering price of this offering is \$1,000,000,000.00, which is inclusive of the \$200,589,713.32 remaining unsold from the prior prospectus supplement and accordingly represents an incremental maximum aggregate offering price of \$799,410,286.68.